

**AMENDED AND RESTATED BYLAWS
OF
JAMESTOWN YOUTH LEAGUE, INC.**

ARTICLE I

Name and Purposes of the Corporation

1.1 Name. This corporation shall be known as JAMESTOWN YOUTH LEAGUE, INC (the “League” or “Corporation”). The name may be changed by the Board of Directors in its discretion. The League shall maintain a post office box in Jamestown to which all League correspondence shall be directed. The President, Vice President, Secretary, Treasurer, and any other officer or director so authorized by the Board of Directors shall have access to the post office box.

1.2 Purpose. The League is organized exclusively for any health, charitable, educational, and benevolent purposes described in Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code, as amended. The specific purposes of the League shall include, but not necessarily be limited to, the following:

- (a) to further the development of youth, recreational and sports activities for the Jamestown community and surrounding areas;
- (b) to be responsible for the fiscal management of funds collected to support such activities; and
- (c) to support any other such health, charitable, educational, and benevolent purposes as determined by the Board of Directors.

ARTICLE II

Meetings of Members

2.1 Place of Meetings. All meetings of members shall be held at the principal office of the Corporation or at such other place, within the County of Guilford, as shall be designated by the Board of Directors or, upon the failure of the Board to make such designation, by the President and set forth in the notice of the meeting.

2.2 Annual Meeting. The annual meeting of members shall be held at the designated location within one hundred and twenty (120) days of the close of each fiscal year and at a date and an hour fixed by the Board of Directors for the purpose of the election of “at large directors” (as described in Section 3.2) by the members of the Corporation and for the transaction of such other business as may be properly brought before the meeting.

2.3 Substitute Annual Meeting. If the annual meeting shall not be held during the period established in Section 2.2, a substitute annual meeting may be called in accordance with the provisions of Section 2.4 or as provided by the Act. A meeting so called shall be designated and treated for all purposes as the annual meeting.

2.4 Special Meetings. Special meetings of the members may be called at any time by the President or a majority of the Board of Directors of the Corporation.

2.5 Notice of Meetings. Written or printed notice stating the time and place of a meeting of shareholders shall be delivered not less than ten (10) (if given by first class mail or email) or no fewer than thirty (30) (if otherwise given in writing) nor more than sixty (60) days before the date thereof, either personally, by mail, or by publication in a periodical to all members of record, mailed by or at the direction of the President, or such other person calling the meeting, to each member of record entitled to vote at such meeting and each other person specifically entitled to receive such notice under the Act. If mailed, such

notice shall be deemed to be delivered when deposited in the United States mail, addressed to the member's address as it appears on the record of the members of the Corporation with postage thereon prepaid. If emailed, such notice shall be deemed to be delivered when sent, addressed to the member's email address as it appears on the record of the members of the Corporation. The notice of meeting shall state that the business to be transacted thereat shall be the election of at large directors.

Unless a meeting is adjourned (a) to a new date, time or place, and such new date, time or place is not announced at the meeting prior to adjournment or (b) to a date more than 120 days after the date fixed for the original meeting, notice of the adjourned meeting need not be given.

2.6. Voting List and Record Date. The Secretary of the Corporation shall prepare an alphabetical list of the members entitled to vote at each meeting, or any adjournment thereof, with the address of each member, which list shall be kept on file at the principal office of the Corporation for a period beginning two (2) business days after notice of such meeting is given and continuing through such meeting. Such list shall be subject to inspection and copying (at the member's expense), during the time it is kept on file under the provisions of the preceding sentence, by any member of the Corporation's principal office at any time during regular business hours. This list shall also be produced and kept open at the time and place of the meeting and shall be subject to inspection by any member at any time during the meeting or any adjournment.

The Board of Directors shall establish a record date for each meeting of members, and only members in good standing as of such record date shall be entitled to vote at such meeting. The Board may establish such procedures and rules for the determination of the good standing of members as it may deem reasonable and necessary.

2.7. Quorum. The presence of members represented in person or by proxy, entitled to cast thirty percent (30%) or more of the votes entitled to be cast by all members in the election of at large directors shall constitute a quorum for action at an annual, substitute annual or special meeting. If there is no quorum at the opening of a meeting of members, such meeting may be adjourned from time to time by the vote of a majority of the members voting on the motion to adjourn; and, at any adjourned meeting at which a quorum is present, any business may be transacted which might have been transacted at the original meeting. Once a member is represented for any purpose at a meeting, he or she is deemed present for the remainder of the meeting and any adjournment thereof unless a new record date is or, under the Act, must set for that adjourned meeting.

2.8. Proxies. A member may appoint one or more agents authorized by a proxy in a form permissible under the Act and executed by the member or by the member's duly authorized attorney-in-fact to vote for him or her at a meeting of members. An appointment of proxy is effective when received by the Secretary of the Corporation or other officer or agent of the Corporation authorized to tabulate votes. An appointment of proxy is not valid after the expiration of eleven (11) months from the date it is deemed effective unless the person executing it expressly specifies therein the length of time for which it is to continue in force or limits its use to a particular meeting. An appointment of proxy is revocable by the member unless the appointment form conspicuously states that it is irrevocable and the appointment form is "coupled with an interest" as provided in the Act.

2.9. Voting Rights. Subject to the Restated Articles, each member shall be entitled to one vote in the election of each at large director to be elected at a meeting of members.

The President and the Secretary of the Corporation are authorized to establish all reasonable and necessary procedures to permit the casting of votes by members. The determination of whether acceptable evidence has been presented by a person or entity to establish his, her or its authority to vote shall be made by the President, and his or her decision shall be final.

2.10. Presiding Officer. The President shall preside at the members' meetings. In the President's absence, the provisions of Section 9.5 of these By-Laws shall control. The Secretary or, in the absence of the Secretary, any person designated by the President shall act as secretary of such meetings.

2.11. Inspectors of Election. At each meeting of the members the proxies shall be received and be taken in charge, and all questions touching qualifications of members or the validity of proxies, the presence of a quorum, the acceptance of votes and the results of member votes shall be decided, by voting

inspectors who shall act in accordance with the Act. Such voting inspectors (who may not be nominees for election as at large directors at such meeting) shall be appointed prior to the meeting by the President.

ARTICLE III

Directors

3.1 Powers. The Board of Directors has general charge of the affairs, business, property and assets of the League. It shall be the duty of the Board of Directors to carry out the aims and purposes of the League and, to this end, to manage and control all of its property and assets. The Board of Directors may delegate any management function it deems advisable. Specifically, but without limitation, the President, other officers and Sports Director, with input from the Board shall be responsible for the following:

- (a) to approve any expenditure less than \$500 unless the expenditure has received prior approval as a budget item;
- (b) appoint, approve, and assist when needed in the selection of all coaches, (including advanced team coaches in All-Star, Classic, Challenge and AAU) umpires, referees, assistants, sports directors, and other personnel for any activity, program, or project that the League may undertake, maintain, sanction, support, or endorse, and develop and establish rules governing their conduct as well as the conduct of parents and participants. The JYL Bylaws and program guidelines shall be the governing document over any other association/league bylaws that a JYL team or individual may be associated with in regard to behavior and conduct. If any sports director, coach, umpire, referee, parent, or other person assisting in any sports activity or program operated or sanctioned by the League, or any participant, is required by the League to suspend or cease participation in the activity, program, or project for any reason, that person shall have the right to appeal such decision to the specific Sport Director(s) and the Executive Committee if such Committee is activated or in the absence of an Executive Committee, the President, by submitting all evidence in writing or in person to the specific Sport Director and Executive Committee or President, as the Sports Director and Executive Committee or President may decide in its sole discretion. Program directors and advanced team coaches are appointed as set forth in each sports program as set forth by the Board with input from the Sports Director, and can be directed or replaced at the discretion of the Executive Committee or in the absence of an Executive Committee, the full Board of Directors;
- (c) make the necessary applications and arrangements with the appropriate authorities to secure any and all playing fields or playing space for any of the sports activities that the League shall undertake, maintain, sanction, support, or endorse.
- (d) obtain insurance coverage for participants, coaches, umpires and any others participating in the League's sports activities. In addition, the Board shall maintain insurance coverage for the protection against the loss of equipment owned and maintained by the League. Such insurance for either equipment or personnel shall be in such amounts and in such types as may be determined in the sole discretion of the Board of Directors. Coaches, officials, board members and any other volunteer must submit to background checks if such a policy is instituted.

3.2 Number and Qualifications. There shall not be less than five (5) nor more than eleven (11) members of the Board of Directors. The number of directors of the Corporation shall be set by the Board of Directors provided; however, that a decrease in the number of directors shall not shorten the term of any director in office at the time of such decrease. Directors shall be elected by the members among the members of the Corporation in good standing.

3.3 Terms of Directors. The terms of the directors of the Corporation shall be set for two years with a limit of three consecutive terms.

3.4 Nomination and Election of Directors. Nominations of persons for election as a director to the Board of Directors of the Corporation at a meeting of the members held to elect directors may be made by or at the direction of the Board of Directors or may be made at such members' meeting by any member of the Corporation entitled to vote for the election of directors at such meeting who complies with the notice procedures set forth in this Section 3.4. Such nominations, other than those made by or at the direction of the Board, shall be made pursuant to timely notice in writing to the Secretary of the Corporation. To be timely, a member's notice must be received at the principal office of the Corporation not less than thirty (30) days nor more than ninety (90) days prior to the members' meeting; provided, however, that in the event that such applicable members' meeting is not an annual meeting of members, notice by the member to be timely must be so received no later than the close of business on the tenth (10th) day following the day on which such notice of the date of the members' meeting was mailed or public disclosure of such meeting was made, whichever first occurs. Such member' notice to the Secretary shall set forth (a) as to each person whom the member proposes to nominate for election as an at large director, (i) the name, age, business address and residence address of the person, (ii) the principal occupation or employment of the person, and (iii) a detailed discussion of the person's involvement in youth soccer activities. The Corporation may require any proposed nominee to furnish such other information as may reasonably be required by the Corporation to determine the eligibility of such proposed nominee to serve as a director of the Corporation including criminal back ground check. No person shall be eligible for election as a director of the Corporation at a members' meeting unless nominated in accordance with the procedures set forth herein. The President shall, if the facts warrant, determine and declare to the members' meeting that a nomination was not made in accordance with the foregoing procedure and, accordingly, shall be disregarded.

3.5 Cumulative Voting. No member shall have the right to cumulate his or her votes in the election of directors.

3.6 Removal. Any director may be removed from office with or without cause by a vote of a majority of all of the members or by a two-thirds (2/3) or greater vote of the Board of Directors. A director may not be removed by the members at a meeting unless the notice of such meeting states that the purpose, or one of the purposes, of the meeting is removal of the director.

3.7 Vacancies. A vacancy occurring in the Board of Directors may be filled by a vote of the majority of the remaining directors, though less than a quorum, or by the sole remaining director. A director elected to fill a vacancy shall serve until the next meeting of members at which directors are elected.

3.8 Resignation. A director may resign at any time by giving written notice to the Chair or Secretary of the Board. Unless otherwise requested, the resignation shall take effect once entered and approved in the meeting minutes.

ARTICLE IV

Meetings of Directors

4.1 Regular Meetings. The Board of Directors may provide, by resolution, the time and place, either within or without the State of North Carolina for the holding of regular meetings. Unless otherwise provided by the Board of Directors, the Board shall meet at least as often as once each fiscal quarter, on the dates and at the time established as customary by the Board of Directors.

4.2. Special Meetings. Special meetings of the Board of Directors may be called by or at the request of the President or any three (3) directors. Such meetings may be held within Guilford County as fixed by the person or persons calling any such meeting.

4.3. Notice of Meetings. When held on the dates and at the time established as customary by the Board of Directors, regular meetings of the Board of Directors may be held without notice. The person or persons calling a special meeting, give notice thereof by telephone, telegraph, teletype or other form of wire or wireless communication, including facsimile communication, or by written communication delivered by hand, United States mail, or private carrier. Written notice of a special meeting of the directors is effective at the earliest of the following: (a) when received; (b) upon its deposit in the United States mail, as evidenced by the postmark, if mailed by first class mail, with postage thereon prepaid, and correctly addressed; (c) upon transmission if sent by facsimile and if completed transmission is evidenced by a sender's confirmation report generated by the sender's facsimile machine; or (d) on the date shown on the confirmation of delivery issued by a private carrier, if sent by private carrier to the address of the director last known to the Corporation. Oral notice is effective when actually communicated to the director. Notice of an adjourned meeting of directors need not be given if the time and place are fixed at the meeting adjourning and if the period of adjournment does not exceed ten (10) days in any one adjournment. Such notice need not specify the purpose for which the meeting is called. Special meetings may be held without notice upon the unanimous consent of the directors.

4.4. Waiver of Notice. Any director may waive notice of any meeting by filing a written and signed waiver with the minutes of the meeting or in the Corporation's corporate records. A director's attendance at or participation in a meeting shall constitute a waiver of notice of such meeting, unless the director at the beginning of the meeting (or promptly upon his arrival) objects to holding the meeting or transacting any business at the meeting and does not thereafter vote for or assent to any action taken at the meeting.

4.5. Quorum. The presence of a majority of the number of directors prescribed by the Board of Directors under Section 3.2 and in office immediately prior to a meeting shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business at that meeting of the Board; provided, however, that if a quorum is not present, a majority of the directors may adjourn the meeting from time to time without further notice except as provided in Section 4.3.

4.6. Manner of Acting. Except as otherwise provided in these By-Laws or the Act, the act of the majority of the directors attending or participating in a meeting at which a quorum is present shall be the act of the Board of Directors. The affirmative vote of two-thirds (2/3) of the number of directors prescribed by the Board of Directors under Section 3.2 and in office immediately prior to a meeting shall be required for the removal of the President as an officer, a modification of the duties and authority of the President as set forth in these By-Laws, the creation or termination of a committee of the Board, the appointment of a director to a committee, the removal of a director from a committee, or a modification of the authority delegated to a committee by these By-Laws or a resolution of the Board of Directors.

4.7. Presumption of Assent. A director of the Corporation who is present at a meeting of the Board of Directors at which action on any corporate matter is taken shall be presumed to have assented to the action taken unless (a) the director objects at the beginning of the meeting (or promptly upon the director's arrival) to holding such meeting or transacting business at it, (b) the director shall file a written dissent or abstention to such action with the presiding officer of the meeting before the adjournment thereof or with the Corporation immediately after the adjournment of the meeting, or (c) the director's contrary vote or abstention is entered in the minutes of the meeting. Such right to dissent or abstain shall not apply to a director who voted in favor of such action.

4.8. Informal Action by Directors. Action taken by the directors without a meeting is nevertheless Board action, and may be described as such, if one or more written consents to the action in question, describing the action taken, are signed by all the directors and filed with the minutes of the proceedings of the Board of Directors or in the records of the Corporation, whether done before or after the action so taken. Action taken pursuant to this Section 4.8 shall be effective when the last director signs a written consent to such action, unless the consent specifies a different effective date.

4.9. Participation by Audio Medium. Upon approval by the Board of Directors, any one or more directors may participate in any meeting of the Board or its committees by means of a conference telephone or similar communications medium allowing all directors participating in the meeting to hear one another simultaneously throughout the meeting. Participation by such means shall constitute presence in person at a meeting.

ARTICLE V

Committees

5.1. Executive Committee. The Board of Directors, by proper resolution and by the vote required under Section 4.6, may appoint an Executive Committee which shall be composed of the President, the Vice President, the Secretary and the Treasurer and which shall have and exercise the powers of the Board of Directors in the direction of the management of the affairs of the Corporation, except at such time as the Board of Directors is in session. Meetings of the Executive Committee may be held at any time on the call of the President or any two (2) members of the Committee. A majority of the members of the Executive Committee shall constitute a quorum. Action by the Executive Committee shall be by majority vote of the members of the Executive Committee. The Executive Committee shall keep minutes of its meetings and shall report its actions to the next succeeding meeting of the Board of Directors.

The Board of Directors shall have the power to direct, limit and control the Executive Committee, and to rescind or modify any action of the Executive Committee, by resolution at any special or regular meeting or by general rules adopted for its guidance. In addition, neither the Executive Committee nor any other committee appointed under these By-Laws shall have any authority to do any act listed in Section 55-A-8-25 of the Act.

5.2. Other Committees. The President, subject to ratification by the Board of Directors by the vote required under Section 4.6, or the Board of Directors, by proper resolution and by the vote required under Section 4.6, may appoint such other committees as may be deemed by the President or the Board, as applicable, to be appropriate. Each such committee shall have at least three (3) members.

5.3. Vacancy. Any vacancy occurring on a Board committee shall be filled by the vote of the Board of Directors required under Section 4.6.

5.4. Removal. Members of all committees of the Board shall serve at the pleasure of the Board. Any member of a Board committee may be removed at any time with or without cause by the vote of the Board of Directors required under Section 4.6.

5.5. Committee Membership and Procedures. Except as otherwise expressly provided in this Article V, the provisions of these By-Laws governing meetings, action without meetings, notice, waiver of notice, quorum, and voting requirements of the Board shall apply to each committee of the Board.

5.6. Responsibility of Directors. In discharging his or her duties as a director, a director shall be entitled to rely on information, opinions, reports and statements prepared or presented by a Board committee of which he or she is not a member unless he or she has actual knowledge of a matter which makes such reliance unwarranted. Such permissible reliance shall relieve such director of any responsibility or liability imposed upon him or her by law when and to the extent permitted by the Act.

If any action taken by a Board committee is not thereafter formally considered by the Board, a director may dissent from such action by filing his or her written objection with the Secretary with reasonable promptness after learning of such action.

ARTICLE VI

Officers

6.1 Offices. The officers of the Corporation shall consist of a President, Vice President, a Secretary and a Treasurer each of whom shall have such power and duties as are set forth in these By-Laws and as may be delegated to such officer by the Board of Directors and each of whom must be a member of the Board. The Corporation's other officers may also consist of and may include additional Vice Presidents, one or more Assistant Treasurers, and one or more Assistant Secretaries, and such other titled officers as may be deemed necessary or advisable by the President, each of which officers or assistant officers thereto shall have such powers as may be delegated to them by the President. No person may hold office of in more than one capacity.

6.2 Appointment and Term. The officers of the Corporation shall be appointed by the Board of Directors for stated terms. Such appointments may be made at any regular or special meeting of the Board. Each officer shall hold office until the expiration of such officer's term as a director of the Corporation prior to the stated term of his or her appointment, such officer's death, resignation, retirement, removal or disqualification, or such officer's successor is appointed and qualified. After holding one officers position, a member shall hold no more than one other different officers position in a subsequent term.

6.3 Removal and Resignation. Any officer appointed by the Board of Directors may be removed by the Board with or without cause whenever in its judgment the best interests of the Corporation will be served thereby. Any such removal or disqualification shall be by the vote of the Board of Directors required under Section 4.6.

An officer may resign at any time by communicating such officer's resignation to the Corporation. A resignation is effective when it is communicated unless it specifies in writing a later effective date. If a resignation is made effective at a later date and the Corporation accepts the future effective date, the Board of Directors may fill the pending vacancy before the effective date if the Board of Directors provides that the successor does not take office until the effective date.

6.4 President. Subject to the direction of the Board of Directors, the President shall direct and supervise the management of the Corporation in accordance with these By-Laws and Restated Articles.

The President shall sign, with any other proper officer, any deeds, leases, mortgages, bonds, contracts, or other instruments which may be lawfully executed on behalf of the Corporation, except where required or permitted by law to be otherwise signed and executed and except where the signing and execution thereof shall be delegated by the President or the Board of Directors to some other officer or agent and, in general, he or she shall perform all duties incident to the office of President and such other duties as may be prescribed by the Board of Directors from time to time.

6.5 Vice President. Subject to the direction of the Board of Directors, the Vice President shall be authorized to exercise all power and authority of the President in the event of the absence or disability of the President or a vacancy in the office of President. The Vice President shall perform such other duties and be delegated such authority of the President as the President shall reasonably determine.

6.6 Treasurer. The Treasurer of the Corporation shall have custody of all funds and securities belonging to the Corporation and shall receive, deposit or disburse the same under the direction of the President. The Treasurer also shall keep full and accurate accounts of the finances of the Corporation in books especially provided for that purpose; and he or she shall cause a true statement of its assets and liabilities as of the close of each fiscal year and a statement of operations for such fiscal year, all in reasonable detail, to be made and filed at the registered or principal office of the Corporation within sixty (60) days after the end of such fiscal year. The statement so filed shall be kept available for inspection by any member for a period of three (3) years; and the Treasurer shall mail or otherwise deliver a copy of the latest such statement to any shareholder upon his written request therefore. The Treasurer, in general, shall perform all duties incident to his office and such duties as may be assigned to him from time to time by the President or the Board of Directors.

6.7 Secretary. The Secretary shall: (a) keep the minutes of the meetings of members, the Board of Directors and each committee of the Board in one or more books provided for that purpose; (b) see that all notices are duly given in accordance with the provisions of these By-Laws or as required by the Act; (c) be custodian of the corporate records and of the seal of the Corporation and ascertain that the seal of the Corporation is affixed to all documents the execution of which on behalf of the Corporation under its seal is duly authorized; (d) keep a register of the address of each member which shall be furnished to the

Secretary by such member; (e) keep or cause to be kept in the State of North Carolina at the Corporation's registered office or principal office a record of the Corporation's members, giving the names and addresses of all members and prepare or cause to be prepared voting lists prior to each meeting of members as required by the Act and these By-Laws; and (f) in general perform all duties incident to the office of Secretary and such other duties as from time to time may be assigned to him or her by the President or the Board of Directors. The Secretary shall maintain at the Corporation's principal office (a) the Corporation's Articles of Incorporation, and all amendments thereto, (b) these By-Laws, and all the amendments hereto, (c) minutes of the meetings, and all resolutions, of the Board of Directors, (d) the minutes of the meetings and the reports, of all committees of the Board of Directors, (e) the minutes of all meetings of members, (f) all written communications to members, and all financial statements required to be made available to members, for the preceding three (3) years, (g) a list of the names and business addresses of the Corporation's current directors and officers, and (h) the Corporation's most recent annual report delivered to the North Carolina Secretary of State under the Act.

6.8 Duties of Other Officers. The duties of all officers and employees not defined and enumerated in these By-Laws shall be prescribed and fixed by the President and in carrying out the authority to do all other acts necessary to be done to carry out the prescribed duties unless otherwise ordered by the Board of Directors, including, but not limited to, the power to sign, certify or endorse notes, certificates of indebtedness, deeds, checks, drafts or other contracts for and on behalf of the Corporation and/or to affix the seal of the Corporation to such documents as may require it.

6.9 Bonds. The Board of Directors may by resolution require any or all officers, agents and employees of the Corporation to give bond to the corporation, with sufficient sureties, conditioned on the faithful performance of the duties of their respective offices or positions, and to comply with such other conditions as may from time to time be required by the Board of Directors.

ARTICLE VII

Contracts, Loans, Checks and Deposits

7.1 Contracts. The President is authorized to enter any contract, lease or other agreement, and to execute and deliver any instrument, on behalf of the Corporation which is to be entered or executed and delivered in the ordinary course of the Corporation's business up to a \$500.00 commitment. In addition, the Board of Directors may authorize any officer or officers, or agent or agents, to enter into any contract, lease or other agreement or to execute and deliver any instrument on behalf of the Corporation, whether or not such action is within the ordinary course of the Corporation's business, and such authority may be general or confined to specific instances. Any resolution of the Board of Directors authorizing the execution of any contract, lease or other agreement or delivery of any instrument of behalf of the Corporation by the proper officers of the Corporation or by officers of the Corporation generally and not specifying particular officers shall be deemed to authorize execution or delivery, as applicable, by the President or any other officer if such execution or delivery is within the scope of the duties of such other officer. The Board of Directors may authorize the Corporation to enter into employment contracts with any of its employees for any length of time and on any terms and conditions it deems wise.

7.2 Loans. No loans shall be contracted on behalf of the Corporation and no evidences of indebtedness shall be issued in its name unless authorized by a resolution of the Board of Directors, or a committee thereof, and except as permitted by law. Such authority may be general or specific in nature and scope.

7.3 Checks and Drafts. All checks, drafts or other orders for the payment of money issued in the name of the Corporation shall be signed by such officer or officers, agent or agents of the Corporation and in such manner as from time to time shall be determined by resolution of the Board of Directors.

7.4 Deposits. All funds of the Corporation not otherwise employed from time to time shall be deposited to the credit of the Corporation in such depositories as the Board of Directors or a committee thereof shall direct.

7.5. The accounts of the League shall be reviewed on an annual basis by a qualified accountant and the report submitted to the Board of Directors within ninety days following the close of the fiscal year.

ARTICLE VIII

Indemnification of Directors, Officers and Others

8.1 Definitions. For purposes of this Article VIII, the following definitions shall apply:

- (a) "Corporation" means the Corporation and all "predecessors" thereof, as such term is defined in the Act.
- (b) "Director" means an individual who is or was a director of the Corporation or an individual who, while a director of the Corporation, is or was serving at the Corporation's request as a director, officer, partner, trustee, employee or agent or another foreign or domestic corporation, partnership, limited liability company, association, joint venture, trust, employee benefit plan at the Corporation's request if such director's duties to the Corporation also impose duties on, or otherwise involve services by, the director to the plan or to participants in or beneficiaries of the plan. "Director" includes, unless the context requires otherwise, the estate or personal representative of a director.
- (c) "Expenses" means expenses of every kind incurred in defending a Proceeding, including, but Not limited to, legal, accounting, expert and investigatory fees and expenses.
- (d) "Indemnified Officer" shall mean each officer of the Corporation who is also a director of the Corporation and each other officer of the Corporation who is designated by the Board of Directors from time to time as an Indemnified Officer. An Indemnified Officer shall be entitled to indemnification hereunder to the same extent as a Director, including, without limitation, indemnification with respect to service by the Indemnified Officer at the Corporation's request as a director, officer, partner, trustee, employee or agent of another foreign or domestic corporation, partnership, limited liability company, association, joint venture, trust, employee benefit plan or other enterprise.
- (e) "Liabilities" means any obligation to pay any or all of the following: a judgment, a settlement, a penalty, a fine (including an excise tax assessed with respect to an employee benefit plan) and reasonable expenses, including, but not limited to, attorney's fees of opposing parties incurred with respect to a Proceeding.
- (f) "Proceeding" means any threatened, pending, or completed action, suit or proceeding, whether civil, criminal, administrative or investigative, whether formal or informal, and any appeal therein (and or inquiry or investigation that could lead to such a proceeding).

8.2 Indemnification. In addition to, and not in any way in limitation of, all indemnification rights and obligations otherwise provided by law, the Corporation shall indemnify and hold harmless its Directors and Indemnified Officers against all Liabilities and Expenses in any Proceeding (including, without limitation, a Proceeding brought by or on behalf of the Corporation itself) arising out of their status as Directors or officers, or their service at the Corporation's request as a Director, officer, partner, trustee, employee or agent of another foreign or domestic corporation, limited liability company, association, partnership, joint venture, trust, employee benefit plan or other enterprise, or their activities in any such capacity; provided, however, that the Corporation shall not indemnify a Director or Indemnified Officer against Liabilities or Expenses that such person may incur on account of activities of such person which at the time taken were known or believed by him or her to be clearly in conflict with the best interest of the Corporation. The Corporation shall also indemnify each Director and Indemnified Officer for his or her reasonable costs, expenses and attorneys' fees incurred in connection with the enforcement of the rights to indemnification granted herein, if it is determined in accordance with Section 8.3 that the Director or Indemnified Officer is entitled to indemnification hereunder.

The Board of Directors shall have the authority to adopt such resolutions pertaining to the implementation of this Section 8.2 as it may from time to time determine, and such resolutions shall be given full effect, even though they supplement, amplify or go beyond the provisions of this Section 8.2, provided and to the extent such resolution does not violate any provision of the Act or Restated Articles.

This Section 8.2 shall be construed in a manner to fully effect the purpose and intent of the resolution of the Corporation's Board of Directors approving and adopting this provision.

8.3 Determination. Any indemnification under Section 8.2 shall be paid by the Corporation in a specific case only after a determination that the Director or Indemnified Officer has met the standard of conduct set forth in Section 8.2. Such determination shall be made:

- (a) by the Board of Directors by a majority vote of a quorum consisting of directors not at the time parties to the Proceeding;
- (b) if a quorum cannot be obtained under Section 8.3(a), by a majority vote of a committee duly designated by the Board of Directors (in which vote directors who are parties to the Proceeding may participate), consisting solely of two or more directors not at the time parties to the Proceeding;
- (c) by special legal counsel (i) selected by the Board of Directors or a committee thereof in the manner prescribed in Section 8.3(a) or (b); or (ii) if a quorum of the Board of Directors cannot be obtained under Section 8.3(a) and a committee cannot be designated under Section 8.3(b), selected by a majority vote of the full Board of Directors (in which selection directors who are parties in the Proceeding may participate); or
- (d) by the members, but votes of directors or officers who are at the time parties to the Proceeding may not be voted on the determination.

The Board of Directors shall take all such action as may be necessary and appropriate to enable the Corporation to pay the indemnification required by this Article VIII.

8.4 Advances for Expenses. The Expenses incurred by a Director or an Indemnified Officer in defending a Proceeding may be paid by the Corporation in advance of the final disposition of such Proceeding as authorized by the Board of Directors in the specific case upon receipt of an undertaking by or on behalf of the Director or Indemnified Officer to repay such amount unless it shall ultimately be determined that such person is entitled to be indemnified by the Corporation against such Expenses. Subject to receipt of such undertaking, the Corporation shall make reasonable periodic advances for Expenses pursuant to this Section 8.4, unless the Board of Directors shall determine, in the manner provided in Section 8.3 and based on the facts then known, that indemnification under this Article VIII is or will be precluded.

8.5 Reliance and Consideration. Any Director or Indemnified Officer who at any time after the adoption of this Article VIII serves or has served in any of the aforesaid capacities for or on behalf of the Corporation shall be deemed to be doing or to have done so in reliance upon, and as consideration for, the right of indemnification provided herein. Such right, however, shall not be exclusive of any other rights to which such person may be entitled apart from the provisions of this Article VIII. No amendment, modification or repeal of this Article VIII shall adversely affect the right of any Director or Indemnified Officer to indemnification hereunder with respect to any activities occurring prior to the time of such amendment, modification or repeal.

8.6 Insurance. The Corporation may purchase and maintain insurance on behalf of its directors, officers, employees and agents and those persons who were or are serving at the request of the Corporation in any capacity with another corporation, partnership, limited liability company, association, joint venture, trust, employee benefit plan or other enterprise against any liability asserted against or incurred by such person in any capacity, or arising out of his or her status as such, whether or not the Corporation would have the power to indemnify such person against such liability under the provisions of this Article VIII or otherwise. Any full or partial payment made by an insurance company under any insurance policy covering any director, officer, employee, agent or other person identified above made to or on behalf of a person entitled to indemnification under this Article VIII shall relieve the Corporation of its liability for indemnification provided for in this Article VIII or otherwise to the extent of such payment, and no insurer shall have a right of subrogation against the Corporation with respect to such payment.

8.7 Savings Clause. If this Article or any portion hereof shall be invalidated on any ground by any court or agency of competent jurisdiction, then the League shall nevertheless indemnify each person

described in Section 7.1 to the full extent permitted by the portion of this Article that is not invalidated and also to the full extent (not exceeding the benefits described herein) permitted or required by other applicable law. However, this Section 7.3 shall not be enforced to the extent it would disqualify the League as a 501(c)(3) organization under the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.

ARTICLE IX

General Provisions

9.1 Seal. The corporate seal of the Corporation shall consist of two concentric circles between which is the name of the Corporation and in the center of which is inscribed the word "SEAL"; and such seal, in the form approved and adopted by the Board of Directors and as impressed on the margin hereof, shall be the corporate seal of the Corporation.

9.2 Waiver of Notice. Except as otherwise expressly provided herein, whenever any notice is required to be given to any member or director under the provisions of the Act or under the provisions of the Restated Articles or these By-Laws, a waiver thereof in writing signed by the person or persons entitled to such notice and delivered to the Secretary of the Corporation, whether before or after the time stated therein, shall be equivalent to the giving of such notice.

9.3 Amendments: Emergency By-Laws. Except as otherwise expressly provided herein, these By-Laws may be amended or repealed and new By-Laws may be adopted only by the affirmative vote of two-thirds (2/3) of the number of directors prescribed by the Board of Directors under Section 3.2 and in office at the time such action is submitted to a vote. Such action may be taken at any regular or special meeting of the Board of Directors or by action without a Board meeting in accordance with these By-Laws and the Act. However, in the circumstances described in Section 55A-2-07 of the Act, the Board of Directors may adopt, as provided in Sections 55-A-2-07 and 55A-3-03 of the Act, such emergency by-laws as may be necessary or appropriate. Such emergency by-laws shall supersede any inconsistent provisions of these By-Laws during the existence of such emergency.

9.4 Fiscal Year. The fiscal year of the Corporation shall be from August 1st of each year through July 31st of the following calendar year.

9.5 Succession Order. The succession order to the President for purposes of these By-Laws shall be the Vice President, the Treasurer and the Secretary (in such order), and if there are no persons holding such offices or if the Board of Directors shall determine to alter such succession order, the person selected to preside by a majority of the directors present or participating in a meeting at which such designation is necessary.

9.6 Definitions. As used herein, the term "Act" shall refer to the North Carolina Nonprofit Corporation Act, as of the date set forth below and as thereafter amended from time to time. As used herein, the term, "Articles of Incorporation" shall mean the Articles of Incorporation of the Corporation as they exist as the date set forth below and as hereafter amended or restated.

9.5 Non-Discrimination. This League shall operate entirely on a non-discriminatory basis with respect to age, sex, race, religion, and national origin. This policy shall apply to membership, boards, committees, staff, and services.

Adopted this the 1st day of August, 2006.

Secretary

